Chowan County Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting
Monday, September 16, 2024
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street
6:00pm

AGENDA
Regular Meeting

a. Call to Order

b. Pledge
c. Invocation Chair Kirby

. Approval of Draft Agenda

. Public Comment

In accordance with NCGS 153A-52.1 The Board will allow a maximum of 3 minutes per speaker
during the Public Comment Period.

. Consent Agenda

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion. If a
County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and considered separately.

a. Minutes
The Board will review and consider approval of the August 19, 2024 Regular meeting and
September 3, 2024 Regular and Special meeting minutes.

. John A. Holmes High School — Contract- Five 9s Company

The Board will review and consider approval of a contract between Chowan County, Edenton
Chowan Schools and Five Nines Company for commissioning services for the construction of John
A. Holmes High School. A copy of the contract is attached for the Board’s review and consideration.

. Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) Funding Application

On behalf of Chowan County, Rivers and Associates will submit a request for funding from DWI to
improve the Cape Colony Water System and to replace fire hydrants system wide. The funding
application will be considered for the 2024 fall funding round by DWI. A resolution authorizing staff
to apply for funds execute documents is attached for the Board’s consideration.

. Appointment

Chowan County Planning Board
Dwayne Goodwin currently serves in Area A. He is eligible and interested in reappointment to Seat A
of the Chowan County Planning Board.

*We continue to advertise a vacancy in Area D (southern portion of Chowan County)



7. Capital Project Ordinance

a. Capital Project Ordinance — Appropriations Act Funding for R/O Plant
The Board will review and consider approval of a capital project ordinance for the grant funds
received to be used for the construction of a Reverse Osmosis (R/O) Treatment Plant.

8. Financial Items
Finance Officer Cathy Smith will present the following:

a. Budget Amendments
2025-007
2025-008
2025-009
2025-010
2025-011
2025-012

b. Financial Report August 2024
Finance Officer Cathy Smith will provide the Board with financial reports for August 2024.

9. External Board/Committee Report
Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external boards to which they have been
appointed.

10. Manager’s Report
County Manager Kevin Howard will update the Board on any pending matters.

11. Timely and Important Matters

12. Adjourn



Chowan County Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting
Monday, August 19, 2024
Northern Chowan Community Center
2869 Virginia Road.
Tyner, NC 27980
6:00pm

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled August 19,
2024.

Present: Chairman Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Ron Cummings, Tray Taylor, Larry McLaughlin,
Chris Evans, Alex Kehayes and Ellis Lawrence.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith and Board Clerk
Susanne Stallings.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led in the pledge.

Commissioner Cummings then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the agenda as presented.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comment
Chair Kirby opened the floor for public comment.

There was none.

Consent Agenda

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one
motion. If a County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

a. Approval of Minutes
Minutes of the July 24, 2024 CIP Committee and the August 5, 2024 Regular and Special
Meetings.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).



Grant Pre Application — Recreation Department

Recreation Co-Director Shannon Ray provided the Board with a request to apply for grant funds

from North Carolina Amateur Sports. The grant request is for $20,000 with no required matching
funds. The grant monies, if awarded, will be used for the purchase of two new scoreboards and a
batting cage for Earnhardt field.

Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the grant pre-application as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

911 Central Communications) Employee Salary Adjustment

Chief Deputy John McArthur requested that the Board approve salary adjustments totaling
$3,763 for three of his employees in Central Communications (Keri Thrasher, Hailey Perkins
and Jessica Camp). Additionally, it is recommended these salary adjustments be paid retroactive
to July 1, 2024.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the request as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Appointment
Opioid Settlement Funds Committee

Mr. Howard stated that it is recommended that the Board appoint a committee to provide
recommendations to the Commissioners regarding the use of Opioid Settlement Funds.

It is recommended the following appointments be made to the Committee:
- County Commissioner (to serve as Chair)
- County Manager
- Finance Officer
- Town Council Appointee
- Trillium Health Resources Vice President
- EMS Director
- Sheriff
- Health Department Representative

He noted it is recommended the committee meet in September to begin forming
recommendations to the Board.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the committee structure as presented. Chair Kirby asked
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

It was noted that Board Clerk Susanne Stallings will serve as the clerk to the committee. She and
the Manager will send out a letter to the appointee organizations requesting they make an
appointment.

Financial Items
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following:




FY23-24 Budget Clean Up Amendments

BA2024-088
L. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
JAHHS
45-5913-999-00 Contingency (165,284.00)
45-5913-441-00 Construction 379,246.00
45-5913-192-02 Inspections (160,000.00)
45-5913-998-00 Other - Misc (53,962.00)

Balanced - -

Justification:

Budget clean-up FY 2024 for JAHHS - contingency items reported to BOCC on

08/05/24.
BA2024-089
.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Sheriff's Office
11-3431-240-00 *Project Lifesaver (591.87)
11-4317-298-00 *Project Lifesaver (591.87)
11-3431-243-00 *KIDS & COPS 591.87
11-4317-443-00 *KIDS & COPS Expense 591.87
Balanced - -

Justification:

Budget Clean-up FYE 06/30/24.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).



FY2025 Budget Amendments

BA2025-001
.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
DSS
12-5310-121-00 Salaries - Regular (20,000.00)
12-5310-198-00 Prof Services - Temp Agency 20,000.00
Balanced - -
Justification:
To amend the 2025 budget for Social Services to include additional
staffing from Vanguard Professional Staffing. This is a transfer between
line items and no additional funding is being requested.
BA2025-002
Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
P (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Central (911)
11-4270-121-00 Salaries - Regular 3,101.00
11-4270-122-00 Salaries - OT (3,761.00)
11-4270-181-00 Fica Expense 238.00
11-4270-182-00 Retirement 422.00

Balanced -

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget for Central Communications (911) to include
salary increase for three employees. This is a transfer between line items
and no additional funding is being requested.

BA2025-003




33-3990-990-00

Justification:

Fund Balance Appropriated

Balanced

1,636,350.97

Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Carry-Forward Balances - Capital Projects

Capital Projects
32-8100-445-00 Recreation - 2024 Bond Referendum 92,500.00
32-8100-457-00 Courthouse - Renovations 919,067.66
32-8100-585-00 Hotel Hinton Improvement 114,257.00
32-8100-601-00 Jail Improvements 19,937.49
32-8100-606-00 Library Repairs 30,644.67
32-8100-607-00 AG Building Bridge Repairs 227,571.20
32-8100-608-00 911 Server Room HVAC 100,000.00
32-8100-609-00 PSC - Chiller 50,000.00
32-8100-611-00 Recreation - Athletic Field Repairs 1,321.12
32-8100-614-00 EMS Radio Replacements 81,051.83
32-3810-033-00 Contribution from Capital Reserve 1,636,350.97

Capital Resereve
33-9800-980-32 Transfer to Capital Projects 1,636,350.97

3,272,701.94

To amend the 2025 budget to include carry-forward balances for capital

BA2025-004

projects not completed in 2024.

3,272,701.94




Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Capital Projects
32-3810-033-00 Transfer from Capital Reserve 279,925.00
32-8100-608-00 911 Server Room HVAC 237,325.00
32-8100-616-00 DSS Heating System-Boiler Replacement 42,600.00
Capital Reserve
33-9930-995-00 Designated Future Appropriations (279,925.00)
33-9800-980-32 Transfer to Capital Projects 279,925.00
Balanced 279,925.00 279,925.00

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget to include capital projects approved by BOCC
on 08/05/24.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

External Board/Committee Report
Commissioner Cummings reported on the CIP Committee projects that are moving along. Noting
the bridge at the Ag Building is nearly complete.

Commissioner McLaughlin reported on Destination Downtown Edenton.
Chair Kirby reported on the Albemarle Commission Board.

Manager’s Report
County Manager Kevin Howard provided the following updates:

- A final draft of the water rate study will be ready for September.
- The County was notified of a mold issue at the elementary schools. The
School system is getting quotes to remediate the issue before school starts.

Timely and Important Matters

There were none.



Adjourn
Being no further business, Commissioner Kehayes moved that the meeting be adjourned. Chair
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



Special Meeting
Tuesday, September 3, 2024
5:00 pm
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street

Closed Session

Present: Chairman Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Ron Cummings (came in later), Larry
McLaughlin, Ellis Lawrence (came 1in later), Chris Evans and Alex Kehayes.

Commissioner Tray Taylor was absent.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith, County Attorney
Lauren Arizaga-Womble and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings and




Commissioner Evans moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor,
the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



Special Meeting
Tuesday, September 3, 2024
5:00pm
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason St.
Edenton, NC

Present: Chairman Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Ron Cummings (came in later), Larry
McLaughlin, Ellis Lawrence (came in later), Chris Evans and Alex Kehayes.

Commissioner Tray Taylor was absent.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith, County Attorney
Lauren Arizaga-Womble and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings

Closed Session

Commissioner Kehayes moved to go into closed session in accordance with NCGS 143-318-11
(a) (3, 5 and 6) attorney client, contract negotiations and personnel. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (4-0).

The minutes of the closed session are sealed.

Commissioner Evans moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor,
the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Adjourn
Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed

unanimously (6-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings
Clerk



Chowan County Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, September 3, 2024
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street
6:00pm

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled September 3,
2024.

Present: Chairman Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Ron Cummings, Tray Taylor, Larry McLaughlin,
Ellis Lawrence, Chris Evans and Alex Kehayes.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings and Finance
Officer Cathy Smith.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led in the pledge.

Commissioner McLaughlin then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda
Board Clerk Susanne Stallings presented the following requests to amend the agenda:
- Remove item #3 Consent Agenda
- Add item 5a — Attorney Contract for specific services from Ben Gallop
Add item 5b — Addition of review of Recreation Bond informational packet
Add item 5c¢ — Purchase of property for test well site on Poplar Neck Rd.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the agenda as amended.
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comment
Chair Kirby opened the floor for public comment.

There was none.

Consent Agenda
Removed




Veterans Service Office Annual Report
Veterans Services Officer Wayne Bray provided the Board with the annual report from Veterans
Services. A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled September 3, 2024.

Resolution to Accept $29.550,000 Appropriations Act Directed Project Grant
Mr. Howard presented the Board with a resolution that accepts the grant funds and authorizes the
County Manager to furnish the required grant information.

Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the resolution as presented. Chair Kirby asked for
all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF RECIPIENT
WHEREAS, Chowan County has received a Directed Projects grant from the 2023 Appropriations Act,
Session Law 2023-134, administered through the Drinking Water Reserve and Wastewater Reserve to
assist eligible units of government with meeting their water/wastewater infrastructure needs, and

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered 20203 Appropriations
Act funding in the amount of $29,550,000 to perform work detailed in the submitted application, and

WHEREAS, Chowan County intends to perform said project in accordance with the agreed scope of
work,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CHOWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONRES OF
CHOWAN COUNTY, NC:

That Chowan County does hereby accept the 2023 Appropriations Act Directed Projects Grant
offer of $29,550,000.

That Chowan County does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of
Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will be
adhered to.

That Kevin Howard, Chowan County Manager and successors so titled, is hereby authorized
and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in
connection with this project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such
other documents as may be required by the Division of Water Infrastructure.

Adopted this the 3™ day of September, 2024 in Chowan County, North Carolina

Contract with Ben Gallop for Legal Services

Mr. Howard noted that the Sheriff’s office has been asked to provide body camera footage from
their department. There is conflict in that the County Attorney’s firm is representing the
claimant. This is a contract between Chowan County and Ben Gallop to provide legal
representation for the provision of the requested footage for the case.




Commissioner Evans moved to approve the contract as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Recreation Bond Referendum Informational Packet

Recreation Co-Director Shannon Ray provided the Board with a PowerPoint of a Community
presentation regarding parks and recreation services. A copy of the PowerPoint is in the meeting
file labeled September 3, 2024. She then provided the Board with a flyer that has been put
together to provide the public with factual information on the Recreation Bond Referendum and
the suggested projects. The flyer and additional information will be available to the public on the
County Website. A copy of the flyer is in the meeting file labeled September 3, 2024.

Leary — Land Purchase Poplar Neck Rd.

Mr. Howard stated that the Leary property was purchased for a test well site. He stated more

property is needed than what was originally purchased from Mr. Leary. He stated the original
price was $10,000 per acre. He stated he is asking the Board for approval to pay $10,000 per

acre, he stated it appears that 1.5 acres is needed. He said it will be about $15,000 needed.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the purchase. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor,
the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Financial Items
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following:

FY23-24 Budget Clean Up Amendments

BA2024-090



Account Number

Account Description

Revenue Expense

(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Fire District-CHFD
23-4340-121-00 Salaries - Regular (9,076.00)
23-4340-126-00 Salaries - PT (6,450.00)
23-4340-181-00 Fica Expense (2,082.03)
23-4340-184-00 Firemen's Pension Fund (633.00)
23-4340-185-00 Unemployment (650.00)
23-4340-186-00 Worker's Comp (5,168.67)
23-4340-199-00 Prof Services (2,015.58)
23-4340-299-00 Dept Supplies (6.02)
23-4340-311-00 Travel (80.97)
23-4340-321-00 Telephone (1,488.54)
23-4340-325-00 Postage (16.00)
23-4340-331-00 Utilities (1,444.05)
23-4340-351-00 Maint & Repairs - Buildings (7,978.92)
23-4340-352-00 Maint & Repairs - Equip (704.37)
23-4340-353-00 Maint & Repairs - Vehicles (4,026.41)
23-4340-392-00 Laundry/Dry Cleaning (25.69)
23-4340-395-00 Employee Training (0.15)
23-4340-491-00 Dues & Subscriptions (106.33)
23-4340-621-00 SCIF 2023 Grant 1,030.31
Fire District - TOE
23-4341-510-00 Capital Outlay-Equipment 97,778.69
23-4341-690-00 Contract Services - TOE (14,039.04)
23-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriated 42,817.23
DF Walker (Fund 47
47-3325-351-00 Sales Tax Refund 7,323.63
47-5914-191-00 DF Walker 2nd FlI 1,400.00
47-5914-299-00 Dept Supplies 2,153.86
47-5914-352-00 Maint & Repairs 419.77
47-5914-440-00 Contract Services 3,350.00
Sheriff
11-4310-183-00 Hospitalization (1,015.96)
Health
11-5210-440-00 ABC Bottle Tax 1,015.96
Admin/Finance
11-4120-183-00 Hospitalization 2,012.00
11-4120-261-00 Office Supplies (1,345.00)
11-4120-299-00 Dept Supplies (667.00)
Coop Extension
11-4952-396-00 Nutrition Education 707.08
11-4950-441-00 Contract Services (707.08)
School Capital
40-3831-491-00 Interest Earned (4,198.79)
40-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriated 4,198.79
DSSs
12-3531-230-01 Social Services Admin (6,874.96)
12-3990-990-01 Fund Balance Appropriated 6,874.96
Balanced 50,140.86 50,140.86

Justification:

Budget Clean-up FYE 06/30/24.




Commissioner Evans moved to approve the budget amendment as presented. Chair Kirby asked
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

FY25 Budget Amendments
2025-005




L. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00 *Preservation/Automation 617.43
11-4180-298-00 *Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 205.81
11-4180-440-00 *Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 205.81
11-4180-511-00 *C/O - Auto / Pres 205.81
Sheriff's Office
11-3431-232-00 *Sheriff Donations 100.00
11-4317-440-00 *Donation - Expense 100.00
11-3431-235-00 *Sheriff Executions 2,190.00
11-4316-440-00 *Sheriff Executions 2,190.00
Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00 *Donations - Chowan 2,000.00
11-3438-894-01 *Donations - Gates 127.00
11-3438-894-02 *Donations - Perquimans 100.00
11-3438-894-03 *Donations - Other 180.00
11-4381-600-00 *Donation - Expense 2,407.00
11-3438-895-00 *Adoption - Chowan 205.00
11-3438-895-02 *Adoption - Perquimans 80.00
11-3438-895-03 *Adoption - Other 500.00
11-4381-441-00 *Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 785.00
Cooperative Ext:
11-3495-378-00 *4-H Fees Discretionary 110.00 110.00
11-4953-448-00 *4-H Fees Discretionary
11-3495-379-00 *Livestock Program 1,950.00
11-4953-449-00 *Livestock Program 1,950.00
Recreation
11-3612-487-00 *Recreation Donations 835.00
11-6130-299-01 *Donations - Dept Supplies 835.00
11-3612-504-00 *Recreation Special Events 4,000.00
11-6132-453-00 *Recreation Special Events 4,000.00
11-3612-507-00 *NCCF - Laughton Endowment 260.00
11-6132-460-00 *NCCF - Laughton Endowment 260.00
Senior Center
11-3616-532-00 *Donations - Home Del Meals 1,500.00
11-4268-904-01 *Donations - Home Del Meals 1,500.00
11-3616-533-00 *Reg Fees - Trips 11,021.00
11-4268-312-00 *TRIPS - Senior Citizens 11,021.00
11-3616-535-04  *Silver Sneakers 909.00
11-3616-535-05  *Silver & Fit 102.00
11-3616-535-06 *Renew Active 312.00
11-4268-352-02 *Healthways 1,323.00
Balanced 27,098.43 27,098.43
Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2025 27,098.43

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget to include Discretionary income for July 2024.

2025-006




Account Number ||

Account Description

Revenue
(Inc+/Dec-)

Expense
(Inc+/Dec-)

Register of Deeds
11-4180-298-00
11-4180-440-00
11-4180-511-00
11-3990-990-01

Senior Center
11-4268-299-01
11-4268-299-02
11-4268-312-00
11-4268-352-01
11-4268-352-02
11-4268-605-00
11-4268-904-01
11-3990-990-02

Sheriff
11-4310-601-00
11-4310-696-01
11-4310-696-03
11-4316-440-00
11-4317-298-00
11-4317-440-00
11-4317-441-00
11-4317-442-00
11-4317-443-00
11-4317-444-00
11-4317-445-00
11-3990-990-03

Soil & Water
11-4730-691-00
11-4730-692-00
11-3990-990-05

Agriculture Extension

11-4950-600-00
11-4952-600-00
11-4953-440-00
11-4953-441-00
11-4953-445-00
11-4953-448-00
11-4953-449-00
11-4953-450-00
11-4953-451-00
11-4953-452-00
11-4953-454-00
11-4953-455-00
11-3990-990-06
Recreation
11-6130-299-01
11-6132-453-00
11-6132-460-00
11-3990-990-08
Animal Shelter
11-4381-441-00
11-4381-600-00
11-4381-602-00
11-3990-990-11
Animal Control
11-4380-601-00
11-4380-691-00
11-3990-990-13
Dss
12-5310-450-00
12-3990-990-01
EMNMS
60-4370-499-00
60-3990-990-01
COA
11-5923-635-00
11-3990-990-10

Justification:

Carry-Forward Balances

*Dept Supplies - Auto Pres
*Cont Serv - Automation/Pres
*C/O - Auto/Pres

FB Appropriation - ROD

*Activities - Dept Supplies
*Donations

*Trips - SR. Citizens

*Donations - Fitness
*Healthways

*Healthy Aging NC Grant
*Donations - Home Del Meal

FB Appropriation - Senior Center

*NCDPS Grant 2022

*Body Worn Camera Grant 2021
*ARHS Comm Linkage Grant
*Sheriff Executions
*Project Lifesaver
*Donation - Expenses
*State Special Expenses
*Federal Special Funds
*Kids & Cops

*Diving - Expenses

*Safe Kids Program

FB Appropriation - Sheriff

*Aquatic Weed Erad-Resid
*Vol Agricultural Distr
FB Appropriation - S&W

*SHIIP Grant
*Hospital Foundation Grant

*AG Program Expenses / Discretionary

*4-H Council Program Expenses
*4-H United Way

*4-H Fees / Discretionary
*Livestock Show & Sale

*ECA Discretionary

Community Benefit Health Grant
Grow to Eat Grant

Vidant Master Food Grant
*Eagles Club Donations

FB Appropriation - Coop

*Donations - Departmental Supplies

*Recreation Special Events

*NCCF Grant - Laughton Endownment

FB Appropriation - Recreation

*Contract Serv - Spay/Neuter
*Donations Expense

*Donations from Advertising

FB Appropriation - Animal Shelter

*Donations - Animal Control
Maddies Fund Grant

FB Appropriation - Animal Control

*DSS Special Events
FB Appropriation - DSS

*Donations - Rescue Squad
FB Appropriation - Rescue Squad

COA Capital Outlay - Reserve
FB Appropriation - COA

Balanced

29,743.49

123,321.94

68,251.92

1,030.44

170,029.80

a47,441.32

33,720.69

1,098.13

1,142.42

955.23

185,936.89

16,150.18
8,765.01
4,828.30

7,023.59
1,000.00
39,921.77
5,133.35
53,028.65
2,561.80
14,652.78

3,820.30
2,781.59
7,520.00

11,879.77
2,274.09

13,993.90

11,588.18

142.06
6,915.66
960.90
6,375.47

602.44
428.00

10,184.09
(585.18)
22,265.16
215.00
1,694.74
a42,817.22
86,102.93
3,827.87
(989.09)
237.61
450.15
3,809.30

10,582.84
19,970.71
16,887.77

155.08
33,565.61

598.13
500.00

1,142.42

955.23

185,936.89

662,672.27

To amend the 2025 budget to include carry-forward balances from 2024.

662,672.27



Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Update on JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses and Summary of Change Orders to Date
Ms. Smith presented the Board with a report on the high school project expenses and a
summary of change orders for the project. A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled
August 5, 2024.

Board members reviewed the report and Commissioner McLaughlin noted that the Board will
need to keep an eye on the contingency budget.

External Board/Committee Report
There were no reports.

Manager’s Report
County Manager Kevin Howard provided the following updates:

Mr. Howard noted that the bridge repair at the Ag Building is complete. He stated that the
contractor is looking at options to repair or replace railings and gathering cost estimates.

Timely and Important Matters
There were none.

Adjourn
Being no further business, Commissioner Cummings moved that the meeting be adjourned.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



COMPANY

Dr. Jana Rawls
Assistant Superintendent
Edenton-Chowan Schools

Ms. Cathy Smith
Finance Officer
Chowan County

RE: Commissioning Proposal for New John A Holmes High School
Edenton-Chowan Schools Board of Education, Edenton, NC

Dear Dr. Rawls and Ms. Smith:

Five Nines Company is pleased to provide Edenton-Chowan Schools with the following bid and
list of available Commissioning Services for the construction of John A Holmes High School
project at for Edenton-Chowan Schools Board of Education in Edenton, North Carolina.
Commissioning will be in accordance with all applicable drawings, specifications, and our
understanding of the relevant scope of work. Commissioning will also follow AABC
Commissioning Group (ACG) guidelines.

Five Nines Company is a woman owned business located in Williamsburg, Virginia specializing in
building commissioning and engineering support services. Our expertise in commissioning, MEP
coordination, and specialized critical systems, combined with our ability to pinpoint trouble
spots early in the project make us uniquely qualified to address the challenges of complicated
projects.

We understand the project will construct the new John A. Holmes High School, an onsite
replacement of the existing facilities. The site is located at 600 Woodard Street, Edenton NC
27932. The new facility is based upon a 650-student program. The site is within the Edenton
National Historic District and the original 1950s portion of John A. Holmes High School is a
contributing structure. New construction will respect this historic significance while providing
updated learning spaces.

(¢F

1166 Jamestown Road, Ste. C ® Williamsburg, VA 23185 e (757) 220-4297 e www.five9sco.com



Cx Proposal
New John A Holmes High School

COMPANY i

Five Nines Company proposes to complete the below services for the following fee(s):

Building Systems Commissioning Services Fifty-Nine Thousand Two Hundred Dollars
(559,200)

The list below is intended to be used as an aid in selecting the commissioning services that
Edenton-Chowan Schools chooses to procure as part of this project. The services identified are
a comprehensive but not an all-inclusive listing of commissioning tasks that Five Nines Company
can provide for various phases of the project that will provide additional value to the end users
of the systems.

Phase Description of Service Included Not Included

Design Phase
1. Review Owner’s Project Requirements (OPR) L] X
2. Review Basis of Design Documentation (BOD) ] X
3. Review design documents and provide report L] X
4, Prepare draft commissioning specifications L] X
5. Prepare draft commissioning plan L] X
6. Provide recommendations for training requirements L] X
7. Attend design meetings L] X
8. Review updated Owner’s Project Requirements L] X
9. Review updated Basis of Desigh documentation L] X

10. Develop training checklist from design specification L] X

11. Finalize commissioning specifications L] X

Construction Phase

12. Conduct and attend commissioning coordination and X ]

other meetings — Thirty (30)

13. Prepare or finalize the commissioning plan X ]

14, Review A/E updated BOD documents and OPR X ]

15. Coordinate integration of commissioning into the X ]

construction schedule

16. Review all commissioned system submittals for approval X ]

17. Evaluate value engineering proposals ] X

18. Review temperature controls documentation X O]

:;{:‘f“t‘q‘.,(.,., ' TV 4

1166 Jamestown Road, Ste. C ® Williamsburg, VA 23185 e (757) 220-4297 e www.five9sco.com



Cx Proposal
New John A Holmes High School

COMPANY hschoo

Phase Description of Service Included Not Included
19. Review project meeting minutes, RFI’s, change orders, X L]
ASl’s and other project documentation relating to
systems being commissioned

20. Write Pre-Functional Checklists (PFCs) for systems being X L]
commissioned
21. Perform site visits for reviews, meetings, construction X ]
inspections and start-ups. Generate and distribute site
inspection reports — Eight (8) Site Visits
22. Review PFCs for completeness X L]
23. Write Functional Performance Test (FPT) procedures for X L]
systems being commissioned
24, Maintain a commissioning issues log X O]
25. Assist with issue resolution X O]
26. Review contractor training program X O]
Acceptance Phase
27. Verify TAB readings per specifications X O]
28. Recommend acceptance of TAB report X ]
29. Supervise and document all functional performance X ]
testing (conducted by the installing contractor) — Seven
(7) Days
30. Witness repeated functional performance tests on O] X
corrected systems
31. Verify all owner training requirements have been met X O]
32. Review O&M manuals for completeness and accuracy X O]
33. Review record documents for completeness and accuracy L] X
34. Review equipment warranties for completeness and L] X
accuracy
35. Review life safety test results X L]
36. Recommend acceptance of commissioned systems X L]
37. Provide a final commissioning report X L]
38. Integrated Systems Testing (IST) L] X
39. Endurance testing L] X
Post Acceptance Phase
40. Conduct lessons learned workshop L] X
41, Provide system retesting at 10 months into warranty X L]
period
42. Seasonal peak load condition testing (summer/winter) X L]
43, Endurance testing ] X

1166 Jamestown Road, Ste. C ® Williamsburg, VA 23185 e (757) 220-4297 e www.five9sco.com



S

Cx Proposal
New John A Holmes High School

Phase Description of Service Included Not Included

44.
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.

Full occupancy load testing

Develop on-going commissioning plan

Provide data for preventative maintenance program
Write detailed preventative maintenance procedures
Generate a detailed systems manual

Update final commissioning report

XXOOOO
OOXNXXKX

Mechanical:

Dedicated Outside Air Handling Unit (2)

Water-to-Water Heat Pump (1)

Hydronic Pumps (4)

Heat Exchanger (1)

Variable Air Volume Terminal Units (85) (To be sampled @25%)
Water Source Heat Pumps (100%)

Exhaust Fans (16)

Kitchen Exhaust Hood (2)

Makeup Air Unit (1)

Kitchen Exhaust Fan (1)

Split Air Conditioning Unit and Outside Condensing Unit (1)
High Velocity Low Volume Fans (8)

Range Hood (1)

Dust Collector (1)

Electric Unit Heaters (2)

Radiant Heating Panels

Dry Cooler (1)

Air Curtain (1)

DDC Monitoring and Controls System

Bldg. Pressure and Air Flow

Electrical: Plumbing:

Generator (1) =  Plumbing Fixtures
Automatic Transfer Switches (3) = Domestic Hot Water System
Project Lighting and controls = Domestic Water Boost Pump
Switchboards =  Fire Sprinkler Pumps and Jockey
Power Panels Pump
Emergency Power System = Sump Pumps

= Water Purification System

A ove frarmilits
Where facili

(# 5]

1166 Jamestown Road, Ste. C ® Williamsburg, VA 23185 e (757) 220-4297 e www.five9sco.com



COMPANY

Functional Testing: Requires participation of the contractors and sub-contractors identified on
the associated commissioning documents who will operate the equipment, perform the testing
and provide the stable trending data. Costs associated with these contractors are not part of
this proposal.

Certificate of Readiness: The contractor shall submit a Certificate of Readiness stating their
respective work is complete, all associated documentation has been submitted, and all
approved Functional Performance Tests have been conducted and signed off by the associated
subcontractor. Any item/point deemed not ready as identified in the Certificate of Readiness
will require the contractor to correct.

Testing: Due to the nature of commissioning, adequate time will be provided for the contractor
to correct items during testing. If the issues cannot be resolved in a reasonable time, the test
will be re-scheduled and tested on a time and materials basis at a rate of $175/hour, excluding
travel and lodging.

Five Nines Company greatly appreciates your time and review of our proposal for
commissioning of the New JAHHS project in Edenton, NC. Should you have any questions
regarding the contents of this proposal or wish to discuss our pricing /scope in greater detail,
please contact me at (757) 220-4297 or david @five9sco.com.

We are committed to being of service to you and look forward to supporting the successful
completion of this project. If this proposal is satisfactory, please execute and return one (1)
copy of this letter for our files.

1166 Jamestown Road, Ste. C ® Williamsburg, VA 23185 e (757) 220-4297 e www.five9sco.com



Five 9s

New John A Holmes High School

COMPANY pase 61 6

Best Regards,
Five Nines Company

David Nelson, CxA, CQM-C, EIT
Project Manager / Commissioning Authority

ACCEPTANCE ACCEPTANCE
By: By:
(signature) (date) (signature) (date)
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Company/Agency: Company/Agency:

Where facility reliability is critical
1166 Jamestown Road, Ste. C ® Williamsburg, VA 23185 e (757) 220-4297 e www.five9sco.com



RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT

WHEREAS, Chowan County has need for and intends to design, permit and construct a project described as
Cape Colony Water System improvements & System Wide Fire Hydrant Replacement Program
and

WHEREAS, Chowan County intends to request State loan and/or grant assistance for the project,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CHOWAN COUNTY:

That Chowan County, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs of the project, if approved for
a State loan and/or grant award.

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on completion of
construction thereof.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project a schedule of fees and
charges and other available funds which will provide adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and
administration of the system and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt.

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a provision authorizing the
State Treasurer, upon failure of Chowan County to make a scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from
the Chowan County any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of the loan.

That Kevin Howard, County Manager, the Authorized Representative and successors so titled, is hereby
authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the State of North Carolina for a
loan and/or grant to aid in the study of or construction of the project described above.

That the Authorized Representative, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed to furnish such
information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with such application or the project: to
make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in
connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, State, and local laws,
rules, regulations, ordinances, and funding conditions applicable to the project and to Federal and State grants
and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the (date adopted) at Edenton, North Carolina.

Bob Kirby
Chairman, Chowan County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Susanne Stallings, Clerk to the Board



FORM FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Clerk to the Board of Chowan County does hereby certify: That the
above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an application
with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of

Commissioners duly held on the day of ,20 ; and, further, that such

resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS

WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of ,2024.

(Signature of Recording Officer)

Clerk

(Title of Recording Officer)

(Seal)

Note: An Attestation by the Clerk/Recording Officer may be used in lieu of the Form for Certification by the
Recording Officer.



Chowan County
Capital Project Ordinance

Be it ORDAINED by the Governing Board of Chowan County, North Carolina, that pursuant to section

13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital Project Ordinance is
hereby adopted.

Section 1: The Project authorized is the construction of a Reverse Osmosis Treatment Plant to be

financed by Session Law 2023-134 Appropriations Act grant, Sessions Law 2021-180 ARP grant, ARP
Revenue Replacement funds, and a USDA-RD loan.

Section 2: The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within the
terms of the board resolution, loan documents and the budget contained herein.

Section 3: The following amounts are appropriated for the project:

Engineering/Design $3,720,000
Testing/Permitting 2,100,000
Legal/Administration 2,140,000
Land Acquisition 830,000
Construction 53,210,000

$62,000,000

Section 4: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project:

ARPA Funds — Revenue Replacement S 1,000,000
ARPA Grant —SL 2021-180 400,000
SL 2023-134 Appropriations Act Grant 29,550,000
USDA-Rural Development Loan 31,050,000

$62,000,000

Section 5: The finance officer is hereby directed to maintain within the capital project fund sufficient
specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency, the grant
agreements, and federal regulations. The terms of the bond resolution also shall be met.

Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making payments as due.
Disbursement requests should be made to the grantor agency in an orderly and timely manner.

Section 7: The finance officer is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status of each
project element in section 3 and on the total grant/loan revenues received or claimed.

Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and
revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to this board.

Section 9: Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the clerk to the Governing Board,
and to the Budget Officer and the Finance officer for direction in carrying out this project.



Duly adopted this day of 2024.

Bob Kirby, Board Chair
(Seal)

Attest:

Susanne Stallings, Clerk to the Board



Chowan County

MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

To: FY! - Board of Commissioners

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date: September 10, 2024

RE: Discretionary Income

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2025 budget as follows:

MBA #: 2025-007

Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description (Inc+/Dec-) (Incf/Dec )

Register of Deeds

11-3418-415-00  *Preservation/Automation 764.38

11-4180-298-00 *Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 254.79

11-4180-440-00  *Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 254.79

11-4180-511-00 *C/O - Auto / Pres 254.80
Animal Shelter

11-3438-894-00  *Donations - Chowan 223.00

11-3438-894-02  *Donations - Perquimans 850.00

11-3438-894-03  *Donations - Other 546.30

11-4381-600-00  *Donation - Expense 1,619.30

11-3438-895-00 *Adoption - Chowan 450.00

11-3438-895-01  *Adoption - Gates 200.00

11-3438-895-02  *Adoption - Perquimans 225.00

11-3438-895-03  *Adoption - Other 1,750.00

11-4381-441-00  *Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 2,625.00
Cooperative Ext:

11-3495-370-00  *AG Program Fees Discretionary 235.00

11-4953-440-00 *Ag Program Fees Discretionary 235.00

11-3495-378-00  *4-H Fees Discretionary 2,395.00

11-4953-448-00 *4-H Fees Discretionary 2,395.00

11-3495-379-00  *Livestock Program 6,500.00

11-4953-449-00 *Livestock Program 6,500.00

11-3495-380-00 ECA Pls.cret|onary (Extension Community

Association) 35.00
11-4953-450-00 ECA Pls.cret|onary (Extension Community
Association) 35.00

11-3495-381-00 *Comm Benefit/Health Iniatives Grant 2,000.00

11-4953-451-00 *Comm Benefit/Health Iniatives Grant 2,000.00

11-3495-382-00 *Grow to Eat Grant 700.00

11-4953-452-00 *Grow to Eat Grant 700.00




Account Number Account Description Revenue Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
11-3495-384-00 *Master Food Grant 500.00
11-4953-454-00 *Master Food Grant 500.00
Recreation
11-3612-487-00 *Recreation Donations 3,600.00
11-6130-299-01  *Donations - Dept Supplies 3,600.00
11-3612-504-00  *Recreation Special Events 4,775.00
11-6132-453-00  *Recreation Special Events 4,775.00
Senior Center
11-3616-533-00  *Reg Fees - Trips 11,193.00
11-4268-312-00  *TRIPS - Senior Citizens 11,193.00
11-3616-533-01  *Registration Fees Activities 71.00
11-4268-299-01  *Activities - Dept. Supplies 71.00
11-3616-535-04  *Silver Sneakers 843.00
11-3616-535-05  *Silver & Fit 69.00
11-3616-535-06  *Renew Active 324.00
11-4268-352-02  *Healthways 1,236.00
11-3616-535-01  *Donations - Fitness 488.00
11-4268-352-01  *Donations - Fitness 488.00
11-3616-537-00 *Albemarle Comm - Health Promotion 1,692.00
11-4268-601-00 *Albemarle Comm - Health Promotion 1,692.00
DSS
12-3531-230-14  *DSS Special Events 453.00
12-5310-450-00  *DSS Special Events 453.00
Balanced 40,881.68 40,881.68
Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2025 67,980.11

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget to include Discretionary income for August 2024.

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk’s Init:

Initials:
Batch #:

Date:




Chowan County

MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

To: FYI - Board of County Commissioners
From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer
Date: September 10, 2024

RE: America 250 Grant

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2025 budget as follows:

MBA #: 2025-008

Account Number Account Description || Revenue Expense H
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
America 250
11-3617-384-00 America 250 Grant - Rev 10,000.00
11-8300-925-00 America 250 Grant - Exp 10,000.00
Balanced 10,000.00 10,000.00

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget to include America 250 Grant. Grant application
was approved by BOC on 05/06/24.

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:
Batch #:

Date:




Chowan County

MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

To: TDA Board MBA #: 2025-009
FYI - Board of Commissioners

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer
Date: September 10, 2024
RE: TDA Co-op Income

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2025 budget for TDA as follows:

Account Number Account Description Revenue || Expense
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
TDA
51-3832-530-00 Co-Op Advertising - Rev 4,367.50
51-8150-370-01  Co-Op Advertising - Exp 4,367.50
Balanced 4,367.50 4,367.50

Justification:

To amend the budget for TDA to include Co-op income received through
August 2024.

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:




Chowan County

MANAGEMENT BUDGET AMENDMENT

To: FY! - Board of Commissioners

From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date: September 10, 2024

RE: Solid Waste

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2025 budget for Solid Waste as follows:

MBA #: 2025-010

Account Number Account Description || Revenue Expense H
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Solid Waste

62-3471-530-00 Scrap Tire Tax Distribution - Rev 6,387.40

62-4710-694-00 Scrap Tire Tax Distribution - Exp 6,387.40

62-3471-531-00 White Goods Tax Distribution - Rev 1,796.60

62-4710-695-00 White Goods Tax Distribution - Exp 1,796.60
Balanced 8,184.00 8,184.00

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget for Solid Waste to include Scrap Tire and White

Goods tax distributions.

Approval Date:
Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:
Batch #:

Date:




Chowan County

BUDGET AMENDMENT

To: Board of Commissioners BA #: 2025-011
From: Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date: September 12, 2024

RE: Opioid Settlement Funds

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2025 budget for Opioid Settlement Funds as
follows:

Account Number Account Description || Revenue Expense H
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Opioid Settlement Fund
28-3301-238-00 Opioid Settlement Revenue 93,845.89
28-9930-995-00 Designated for Future Appropriations 93,845.89
Balanced 93,845.89 93,845.89

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget to include Opioid Settlement Fund payments received
through 09/06/24.

Approval Date:

Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:

Batch #:

Date:




Chowan County

BUDGET AMENDMENT

To: Board of Commissioners

From: John McArthur, Chief Deputy
Cathy Smith, Finance Officer

Date: September 12,2024

RE: Sheriff's Office

BA #: 2025-012

Please authorize the finance officer to amend the 2025 budget for Sheriff's Office as follows:

Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
8 || (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-) H
Sheriff's Office
11-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriated 40,000.00
11-4310-440-00 Contracted Services 40,000.00
Balanced 40,000.00 40,000.00

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget to include Axon Enterprise service agreement for Body
Worn Cameras. Grant monies covered purchase of cameras in last fiscal year.

Approval Date:
Bd. Clerk's Init:

Initials:
Batch #:

Date:




Ad Valorem Taxes
Tax Penalty & Interest
Prior Year - R&P

Current Year Levy - R&P

Prior Year - MV
Current Year Levy - MV
Total Ad Valorem Taxes

Sales Tax
Article 39 Sales Tax
Article 40 Sales Tax
Article 42 Sales Tax
Article 44 Sales Tax
Total Sales Tax

Other Taxes

Permits & Fees

Departmental

Miscellaneous

Fund Balance Appropriations
Total General Fund Revenue

Expenditures
Education Expenses
Governmental Expenses
Human Services Expenses
Other Expenses
Public Safety Expenses
Transfer to Social Services
Transfer to Re-Val
Transfer to Debt Service
Transfer to EMS

Total General Fund Expenditures

Net General Fund (11)

Chowan County
Revenue/Expenditure Summary

General Fund

Year-to-Date through 8/31/24

%

Actual + Adjusted Available Budget Prior Year
Encumbrances Budget Budget Met Actual YTD

5,979 50,000 44,021 12% 4,013
30,265 150,000 119,735 20% 31,935
1,164,837 12,098,280 10,933,443 10% 1,371,893
42 - (42) 100% 66
129,267 952,150 822,883 14% 121,462
1,330,391 13,250,430 11,920,039 10% 1,529,369

- 1,784,387 1,784,387 0% -

- 1,056,604 1,056,604 0% -

- 148,240 148,240 0% -

- 338,465 338,465 0% -

- 3,327,696 3,327,696 0% -
498 48,600 48,102 1% 526
84,614 393,500 308,886 22% 78,811
313,203 875,339 562,136 36% 319,365
149,407 2,025,829 1,876,422 7% 176,602

- 1,440,929 1,440,929 0% -
1,878,113 21,362,323 19,484,210 9% 2,104,673
864,469 5,353,252 4,488,783 16% 841,309
1,112,824 3,752,498 2,639,674 30% 1,038,080
329,757 1,449,176 1,119,419 23% 427,206
46,775 375,239 328,464 12% 64,143
925,621 5,832,417 4,906,796 16% 983,695

- 1,336,598 1,336,598 0% -

- 95,150 95,150 0% -

- 1,585,497 1,585,497 0% -

- 1,582,496 1,582,496 0% -
3,279,446 21,362,323 18,082,877 15% 3,354,433

(1,401,333) - (1,249,760)



Chowan County
Revenue / Expenditure Summary by Fund
Year-to-Date through 8/31/24

Actual + Adjusted % Budget
Encumbrances Budget Met
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
General Fund (Fund 11, 12)
Revenues 2,171,163 24,080,617 9%
Expenditures 3,860,161 24,080,617 16%
Net General Fund (1,688,999) -
Revaluation Fund (Fund 25)
Revenues 1,159 100,000 1%
Expenditures 96,000 100,000 96%
Net Revaluation Fund (94,841) -
Debt Service Fund (30)
Transfers In - 2,342,761 0%
Expenditures - 2,342,761 0%
Net Debt Service Fund - -
Capital Project Fund (32)
Revenues - 1,916,276 0%
Expenditures 1,440,003 1,916,276 75%
Net Capital Project Fund (1,440,003) -
Capital Reserve Fund (33)
Revenues 170,895 2,341,699 7%
Expenditures - 2,341,699 0%
Net Capital Reserve Fund 170,895 -
School Capital Reserve Fund (40 and 42)
Revenues 3,735 1,379,905 0%
Expenditures 123,051 1,379,905 9%
Net School Capital Reserve Fund (119,316) -
JAHHS Replacement Fund (45)
Revenues 271,884 74,009,388 0%
Expenditures 2,118,325 74,009,388 3%
Net JAHHS Replacement Fund (1,846,441) -



Chowan County
Revenue / Expenditure Summary by Fund
Year-to-Date through 8/31/24

Actual + Adjusted % Budget
Encumbrances Budget Met
|SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Fire Districts Fund (23)
Revenues 95,029 1,188,418 8%
Expenditures 34,297 1,188,418 3%
Net Fire Districts Fund 60,732 -
E-911 Fund (24)
Revenues 17,113 214,405 8%
Expenditures 22,413 214,405 10%
Net E-911 Fund (5,300) -
ARPA Fund (27)
Revenues 6,907 333,603 2%
Expenditures - 333,603 0%
Net ARPA Fund 6,907 -
Opoid Settlement Fund (28)
Revenues 90,006 - 0%
Expenditures - - 0%
Net Opoid Settlement Fund 90,006 -
|ENTERPRISE FUNDS: |
Water Dev. Capital Reserve (22)
Revenues 6,743 - 0%
Expenditures - - 0%
Net Water Dev Capital Reserve 6,743 -
EMS Fund (60)
Revenues 161,992 2,508,496 6%
Expenditures 418,764 2,508,496 17%
Net EMS Fund (256,772) -
Water Fund (61)
Revenues 356,071 1,953,732 18%
Expenditures 1,027,481 1,953,732 53%
Net Water Fund (671,410) -
Solid Waste Fund (62)
Revenues 212,796 1,446,082 15%
Expenditures 157,993 1,446,082 11%

Net Solid Waste Fund 54,803 -



Chowan County

Cash and Investment Summary

8/31/2024

Cash Accounts
Petty Cash - General Fund
Petty Cash - Water Department
Cash on Deposit - Southern Bank

Total Cash Accounts

Investment Accounts
Investment - BB&T
Investment - BB&T - Project Fund DF Walker (Classrooms)
Investment - NCCMT Portfolio
Investment - NCCMT Portfolio / School QZAB
Investment - PNC Money Market - 3652
Investment - PNC Money Market - 8893
Investment - Southern Bank - Certificate of Deposit
Investment - Southern Bank - Money Market
Investment - Southern Bank - SunEnergy
Investment - Southern Bank - SunEnergy
NCCMT Term Portfolio
Investment - PNC Money Market - 8061 (JAHHS Project Fund)

Total Investment Accounts

Total Cash & Investments

Increase /
5/31/2024 8/31/2024 (Decrease)
250 250 -
150 150 -
539,616 424,772 (114,843)
540,016 425,172 (114,843)
504,520 504,584 63
269,247 269,253 7
7,713,003 7,814,956 101,953
428,327 433,989 5,662
53,548 53,925 378
51,885 51,635 (251)
3,140,782 3,180,612 39,830
9,468,023 5,973,362 (3,494,661)
108,000 108,000 -
100,000 100,000 -
669,915 678,770 8,855
35,290,982 35,286,784 (4,197)
57,798,232 54,455,871 (3,342,360)
58,338,247 54,881,043 (3,457,204)

*Note - Cash Decrease due to expenditures for JAHHS - grant reimbursement of $4.8 million received 09/04/24





